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ST. JOHN'STEITJRCH, LYTHAM,

The first recorded beginnings of St. John's are found in a Minute
Sheet preserved in the church safe. This relates that " At a neeting of
Gentlemen held at the Clifton irws Hotel, Lytiam, on Friday, 27th of
November 1846, the best neans of providing additional Church accourodation
for the rapidly increasing population of the Town was talren into
consideration; when it was unanitiously resolved ' that an additional
Church should be erected and a suitable endownent provided; the future
funds should be raised by subscription'"

4 footnote states that 'Thomas Clifton, BEsc. has kindly consented to
provide the necessary site for the Church and liberzlly to contribute
towards its endownent.' An appeal was issued wita the first list of
subscribers directed ' more particularly' to the Visitors of Lytiam
for whose accomnodation it was principally undertaken,

Building was apparently begun in 1848 ( the year in which the
'Harket House' was buiil n an open space, formerly the Ornamental
Gardens) and by the following year the 'Cormittee of uanagement' of the
»:# Church had incurred a considerable overdraft with the Preston 01d
Bank. In order to liquidate this a Bazaar was held in the new Market
Hall in August, i¢ty. This was well advertised in the ' Preston
Pilot', the ' lanchester Guardian', the ' Poulton Chronicle' and ' Courier'.

4 NMre Je.WsShellard of Manchester was the architect and his first payment
was a note for £100 and Thomas Darwen made the Screens for the Church for
£12,10s | in account from the Clifton Arns was for supplying the workmen
with 'Shilling ordinaries' for lunches with Ale.

The original Church consisted of the Nave with side aisles separated
from it by pointed arches and circular columns, a very small Chancel, and
a Porch and Tower surnounted by a spire of 140ft.

The first Vicar was the Rev. W.H.Self who lived at the Dower House
( later the Vicarage) at a peppercorn rent payable to the Clifton estates
The first entry in the Baptism Register wis on the 29th 4April, 1849
of Rachel Cookson of Clifton Street. There were no marriages for the
first two ycars until the Church wasconsecrated and the Deed of Assignment
as an Bcclesiastic Parish was signed in April, 1851, The first couple
to be married were Henry William Fell, a Cabinet-maker and Sarah Winstanley,
a confectioner, this was witnessed by the wife of the Vicar, Mary Self.
The first burial was Arthur Lloyd in a vault beneath the green space
at the South-west corner of the liemorial Chapel.

A programme of enlargement was started almost inmediatelye The
Choir was extended Bastwards flanked by Vestries. The transepts were
built from the old Chancel to form a crossing in 1856 at a cost of
£1,464 plus architect's fees of £78. The new heating system cost £54.

THE WILDOUS.

On the West wall on entering the church is a single light in memory
of Lr. Bannerman of Our Lord with a child on his knee and the text
'Suffer little children to coiie to Me' — thig used to be over the old
font. The Vest window was given in nemory of James and EBlizabeth Fair
by their children and depicts a Madonnz in the centre of each light.

The panels sghoir the Baptisii of Jesus, His Presentation in the Temple

His visit to Jerusalen und the Nativity. The 1ight in the Baptistery
was given in memory of Thonas Fildes ( 1840 - 1887) and contains a figure
of Our Lord and the opening words of St. John's Gospel. In the North
wall of the Baptistery the window shows the Fishermen of the Lake and
our Lord walking on the water, The windows of the North Aisle are all
of this century and designed by a member of the Royal Acadeny, the first
shows St. Paul, the Apostle of the Gentiles, then comes St. 3tephen the
first Martyr followed by other Lpostles. The Rose window in the Horth
Transepnt ia in necorvy of Thomas Miller of Sinecleton Park.
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The BEast window of three lancets coubines the Christian Graces and
St, John the Evangelist in the centre. Thais was installed in 1888 by
public subscription as a tribute to Bertha Lelgrade, 3croness Grey de
Ruthyn who had done much for the new Organ., The face of Charity is
based on her portrait, In the IHemorial Chapel, the two side-~lighs
of the #ast window were separated when the old Scholars' Chapel was
converted after the Great War. These lights were given by the first
Vicar in mewmory of his wife, Mory, in 1859 and contain figures of the
Virgin Mary - on the left the Hater Dolorosa and on the right the
Stabat Mater, The centre light - a Crucifixion - was installed in
1922 by Mr. Frederick Walmesley.

The three windows in the South wall of the Chapel represent the
three Synoptic Evangelists — St. Mathew and St. Luke with St. Mark in
the centre, surrounded by tie iris of the Royal iLrtillery, the Royal
Navy, the King's Own, the Loyal North Lancashires and the Lancashire
Fusilierse.

The South Transept's three lancets represent the Call of the Sons
of Zebedee -~ the Master in the centre over a scroll bearing the words
'Follor Me', St. John is to the East and St. Jawres to the West with
Zebedee in the boate. The window was given in uemory of Thomas Clifton
the Founder and Patron of St. John's who died in 1851,

The South windows show the Saints of Northern England, St. Cuthbert,
St. Wilfred, St.Stradda, St. Hilda, St. Aidan, St. Oswald, St. Ethelburga
and St. Paulinus. They were instulled early in the century and were
the work of a famous stained-glass artist named Webb and some show
his 'rebus' - a spider's web, The Clerestory windows show scenes from
St. John's Gospel and over the approach to the South door are the symbols
ALlpha and Omega from the Revelation of St. John the Divine and the early
Christian cryptogram ! I.H.S.'

STONE Ci:RVINGS

There are few churches of 3t. John's agze with so so much carved stone.
Three of the orginal four Runic crosses still surnount the easterly
gables. There are thirty-one masks and cn angel carved from Yorkshire
stone. Six of the masks are on theexterior, the arch of the West
door ( the original entrance) springs from the masks of our Lord and His
liother. The arch of the South porch springs from representations of
King BEthelbert and St. asugustine, St. Bdward the King and one-time
Patron Saint of England looks out East gargoyle fashion from one foot of
tiie Chancel gable, while Thomas Clifton, the Founder, keeps watch over
the Vestry door.

Inside the Church are twenty-five masks, oune at the foot of
each arci of the Nave and one supporting cach of the fourieen flying
colurnns, These are Royal and Saintly characters and include, St. Cuthbert,
St. Chad, King Oswald and Queen HEthelburga. In the Chancel Queen
Victoria is opposite William Musgrave who was irchbishop of York at
the tine of the Consecration of thie Church. Next to him is Edward
Frince Lee, the first Bishop of lanchester. Along the Scuth
gide are S. Hilda(ﬁbbess of Whitby) and in the Scuth wall of the
Sanctuary, a woman with a cloth zag ( 1 Corinthians 14 Vo341)
On the North wall of the Sanctuary is an excelleat half-length carving
of the iLngel Gabriel and, on the North side of the Choir, the.masks of
the Clifton fanily.
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MEMORTALS

The Lych Gate at the entrance to the Church yurd is of English oak
and was erected in 1897 in memory of the Vicur, the neve T.G. Smart by
the parish,

The Church Wardens' staves were given by 2 former Churchwarden Ir,
Talter Dean,

The Canopy of the Font was given by the Teachers and Scholars of the
Sunday School in 1920,

The Screen between the Baptistery and the Ilorth Lisle was originally
aChancasl 3creen and was given by the Reve Willianm Pilling in 1881,

The Litany Desk was given by thie men of St, John's Bible Class in
1921 in nenory of nen from the clzss who died in the War,

The Screen between the Choir and the 7ar lHemorial Chapel was
dedicated by the first Bishop of Blackburn ( Dr. Herbert) in 1934,
It was erected by the parish in uemory of their third Vicar the
Rev. John Gilbexrtson~ Pritchard.

The High Altar was given in 1899 and the original Altar was moved
to the liemorial Chapel.

The Commnion Plate was given by Thouas Clifton in 1849,

There is a tragic nemorial in the South Vestern portion of the
Church yard where a stone Cross records the death of severn children
from Manchester in 1863 who were drowned in atteupting to ford the
Ribble. Five children were fronm one fauily and their ages were from
10 years to twenty-five.

The new Choir Vestry was dedicated on the last day of S. John's first
100 years in neuwory of Charles Thelwall ( Churchwarden 1938-47).

Canon Shields of S.Cuthberts presented the Processional Cross to
comuemorate the Centenary of S. John'se

THE BaLLS

For the first twenty-five years of its life S.John's was dependant
on one bell which was sold in 1875 for £22.,7.6d. L peal of bells was
then installed for £518, the tenor bell costing £95 being given by the
Rev, William Pilling. The names of the Vicar and Churchwardens are
inscribed on the No. 4 and No, 5 bells so they may have been partially
responsible for then,.

The inscriptions on the bells are in Latin but read:-

ios 14 Devotion, death and harpiness bid us sound

No. 2 O Lord,; open Thou our lips

Nos 3 And our moutir shall show forth Thy jix.ise

Fo. 4 Grant Thy people salvation ( R.Rzinford and L. Whiteside Churchwardens)
Nos 5 Lord have mercy upon ne ( T.G. Smart, Vicar)

No. 6 The glory is to God ( Willian flllll” late Vicar ‘of Lrnsby

cauged une to be uude)

In 1911 the first full peal was rung of 5,040 changes by C.H. Kerr,
D.MclLellan, R. Cardwell, J, Tipping, J. Hardmcon and T, Allanson.
In June 1913, a peal of linor in fourteen nethods was rung by a team
including I. Tipping,.
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THE ORGLN

The original Organ was installed in 1848, two and o half years before
the Consecratione. This was renoved to tie original Clergy Vestry in
1874 and enlarged at a cost of £349 and 2 “ater Turbine was purchased
for £40, It was further improved in 1888 with the help of Bertha
Lelgrade and at this time the tablet to her wenory in the Sanctucry
was erected with the balance of nmoney raised. in electric Blower
was installed in 1934 as the water power was now insufficient,

The new Organ, costing £2,730 was placed in the Horth Transept

with the detached Console in the Chancel, 4 'Discus!' Blower provides
wind pressure and drives a 16 volt generator.

~fter the opening of the new Organ and its dedication, it was
first played in public by Dr. Francis Joxnson, Organist of York liinster.

THS WsR LBMORIAL CHAFEL,

In 1617, the idea of a War Menmorial Chapel was suggested by
Mr, lartin-Lee and welconed by the Vicar, the Rev. J, Gilbertson -
Pritchard, The Baptistery was reioved at this time from the "est
end of the Nave to the foot of the lNorth iLisle and th: Screen
dividing the then Choir Vestry from the South Transept was ioved to
separate the new Baptistery.

The windows were altered, the Tfloor laid witl Italian nosaic and
the walls pannelled and a Hemoricl Tablet and the naies of every
Lythan soldier aand sailor who had died for their country were engraved,
The stonework was all done in the yard of J. Stother and his work:en
were J.B.Myerscough, 0. Cartnell and ¥W.J.Cartuell,

The Chapel was dedicated on 20th April 1921 by the Lord Bishop
of Manchester ( Dr. Yillianm Tenple, subsequently irchbishop of York and
Canterbury). The lLenorial Tablet, given by lirs. Jacob Parkinson was
dedicated in May, 1922, The total cost of the Chapel was £1,828
xclusive of many gifts and 6,738 hours of work had been put in.

The Chapel was actually completed to the original design until
May 1934 when two carved ook Parclose Screens were dedicited by the
Lord Bighop of Blackburn ( Dr. Herbert) as a menorial to the Vicar who
had uniertaken this work for the ennobling of the Church. The cost of
the Screens was £ 98,
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ST, JOHN'S PuRISH SCHOCLS.

The original School was erected on a site conveyed by kr. Clifton
on the 11th June 1851 under the authority of the Schools Site act to the
Minister and Churchwardens of 3t. Joan's Church., 4 plaque states
the School was erected by contributions from the inhabitants of Lythan
aided by grants from the Countil of Education. There were three roons
providing an area of 8 square feet per scholar,

In 1879 the 'Lythan Charities' guve a grant of £50 p.a. which
increased to £100 in 1863, In 1880, it was suggested that the Charity
should take over the School but there was deternined opposition and the
natter was in abeyance until 1899 when it becaue one of the three
Schools adninistered by the ' Lytliwcia School Churities' and funded at
£450 p.ae but having, also, a body of ilanagers, who were members of the
original Trust. The first Mancgers were:— Charles Birley of Bartle
Hall, hAugustus Wkehan Clifton of "Tarton Lodge, Robert Crozier, a
chenist, Thomas Fair and James Fair, land agents, Luke Fisher, o doctor
and Bdward Mellor and Jaues Needhan of Lythan, Thomas Miller of Singleton
Park and James Parkinson of loss Hall Farm,

The Vicar and Churchwardens conveyed to James Talbot Clifton the
School by an indenture in 1898, who, in turn, conveyed it to the Trust.
The Commissioners approved a schene for enlarging the School to a sum
of £1,100 but the final total was £1,730 the balance apparently being
nade up by Public Subscription as stated on the plaque over the main
doore. In 1929 the annucl peyment to the Schools was raised to £750,

The new building was erected on the site of the old Fapter's house
and lios. 22 and 24, Warton Street were purchesed and denolished together
with an oid cottage Ht a cost of £60., The Heatin; apparatus cost £60
and the Flayground £35. The Infants noved into the new building in
January, 1913,

In 1922, 74 Varton Street was purchased as a Curate's house, it was
occupied by the Headmistress of the Infant's Schocl for soiie time then
leased to the Lancashire Constabulary,

ST. ANDRET'S MISSION,

This addition to the Parish was undertaken in the time of the
Reve Je Gilbertson-Pritchard and largely financed by a Mr. Cornforth
of Mythope The site was leased by lMr. John Talbot Clifton to the
Vicar and Churchwardens for a peppercorn rent of half a crown p.de
It is a seni-pernmanent building of corrugated iron with a wood lining
and contains a hall of 50ft by 20ft witl ante-roonis to hold 100 people.
Over the entrance porch there is a turret in which is mounted an old
ship's bell, The only late available fron the past is the taking out
of a Policy of Fire Insurance in April 1901 ( £200 on the building and
£50 on the furnishings).

e Clergy of St. John's were first in chorge of the Services, then
the Headnaster of the Schools, Churcl: Lrnmy Officers and Lay readers.
The lMission was usced as o temporary Reception irea for evacuees

in 1 939. .
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